
Heber City Corporation
City Council Meeting

January 21, 2010

7:00 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING 

The Council of Heber City, Wasatch County, Utah, met in Regular  Meeting on 01/21/2010, in 
the City Council Chambers in Heber City, Utah.

Present: Mayor David R. Phillips

Council Members Nile Horner
Robert Patterson
Alan McDonald
Benny Mergist

Excused: Eric Straddeck

Also Present: City Manager Mark K. Anderson
City Recorder Paulette Thurber
City Planner Tony Kohler
Chief of Police Ed Rhoades
City Attorney Mark Smedley

Others Present: Kraig Powell, Gary McDonald, Paul Kennard, Paul Berg, Martin Van 
Roosendaal, Fred Schloss, Russ Watts, Mike Johnston, David Brindley, Kieth Rawlings, Chris 
Gamvroulas, and Nan Trotter.

Pledge of Allegiance: Councilman Alan McDonald
Prayer: Mayor David Phillips

Mayor Phillips excused Councilman Straddeck as he was out of town on business.

Minutes: January 4, 2010 Special Meeting
January 7, 2010 Work Meeting

Councilman Patterson moved to approve the minutes of the Special Meeting of January 4, 2010, 
and the Work Meeting of January 7, 2010. Councilman Mergist made the second. Voting AYE: 
Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. Councilman Straddeck was 
excused. 

1 of 8 cc01212010



OPEN PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

Kraig Powell - Powell said he lived in Heber and proud to be able to say that. He indicated he 
represented the County of Wasatch in the Utah Legislature and wanted to let the Council know 
he was available. He said when the Legislature started on Monday, it would be crunch time with 
budgets and knew and understood that cities, counties and other entities were facing the same 
difficulties. “We feel your pain,” he said. He continued the Legislature was looking at every 
possible option to make life easier on the residents and did not want to raise taxes and place 
additional burdens on the tax payers; however, they wanted to continue to provide adequate 
services.  He told the Council they were well represented at the Legislature by the ULCT (Utah 
League of Cities and Towns) and that there was always three or four of them attending the 
Sessions. He wanted the Council to know that any of them were welcome to contact him at any 
time.  He said he always had his laptop with him and if an e-mail was sent to him, he would get it 
immediately. He congratulated the new Council members and those re-elected and said he 
appreciated their service. 

Anderson indicated Powell meant what he said. He met with Powell and some other families last 
Saturday that received services from DSPD and those people had the opportunity to express 
come of their concerns with budgetary cuts to Representative Powell. Powell said he had an 
exciting meeting yesterday on a committee he sat on representing people with disabilities, and he 
was able to make a motion to preserve funding and not make any cuts to that disability program. 
Powell said that just showed the power of political activism. 

Fred Schloss - Schloss said there had been a very interesting article in the Wasatch Wave last 
week. A major point was that the comments made during the Open Period for Public Comment in 
which it was stated that someone addressing the Council during the Open Period was not 
supposed to be interrupted. He said he had attended many meetings in the past when he was 
asked to sit down and shut his mouth.  He said he had a very thick skin and appreciated the 
support he was getting right now. Schloss indicated he had file cabinets full of things he wanted 
looked at and unless he was grossly out of order, he would appreciate consideration. Councilman 
McDonald said he appreciated citizens like Schloss and wanted him to come whenever he felt 
there was an issue. Schloss said Mayor Phillips was his friend. He said, too, he was fighting for a 
cause with the Senior Program but unfortunately that had not worked out. He continued that any 
citizen should be able to come to the Council and express their opinion and also they had the 
right to put articles in the newspaper. 

Mayor Phillips said it was not his intent to insult Schloss and would defend a person’s right to 
come to the Council. However, he would get defensive if he perceived there was an attack on one 
of the City Council and/or staff. 

APPOINTMENTS

Tom Stone – Community Alliance for Main Street (CAMS) – Introduction to new 
Councilmembers – Goals/Ideas – Other Discussion:  Mike Johnston represented CAMS.  He 
said CAMS felt, because of the two new City Council members, that an annual report was in 



order. He said CAMS was an organization open to anyone who had a concern for Main Street 
and Main Street businesses and had been around for about six years. They met monthly and 
anyone was welcome to join their members. (Last Tuesday of the month at 7:30 a.m.) Johnston 
said CAMS had enjoyed working with the City and City staff and all of them had worked to 
make Main Street more beautiful and friendly. He said Mark Rounds, Parks and Cemetery 
Supervisor, had been wonderful to work with. Johnston reviewed some of the things that had 
been done over the last few years--flags, striping, traffic lights, flower baskets, trash receptacles 
and benches. He talked about the July 4 celebration and that it was growing each year and had 
been very successful.   Councilman McDonald asked about the possibility of little sidewalk sales, 
etc., during July 4.  Johnston said they had tried that but it had not been successful.  Councilman 
McDonald talked about a restaurant week in Heber City. Johnston said he had been to one of 
those and would like to do that. He said he welcomed any suggestions the Council might have. 
Johnston said planning staff reviewed with CAMS some of their issues and they appreciated the 
City’s willingness to listen to their comments and concerns.  He said maybe this year was the 
year to have a Council/CAMS visioning process. He said the last thing he wanted to discuss was 
a landscaped median which was something very important to CAMS. He knew that was not 
possible until there was a truck route. He said they wanted to see a much more quiet and friendly 
Main Street. Councilman Mergist wondered what CAMS’ opinion was regarding the bypass. 
Johnston said they supported it.  Johnston said they only had 12 members or so but they moved 
forward on issues and tried and get people’s support. He said, though, a lot of people support 
CAMS and its mission, but didn’t want to be involved. 

Cecilia Gutierrez – Tony’s Tacos – Local Consent fro Beer Sales – Change of business 
location from 32 South Main to 461 South Main: (Tab 2):  Anderson said from staff 
standpoint it was just a transfer of locations for the beer sales. He said it met all City Ordinances. 

Councilman McDonald moved to support the request from Tony’s Tacos – Change of business 
location from 32 South Main to 461 South Main.  Councilman Mergist made the second. No 
discussion. Voting AYE:  Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. 
Councilman Straddeck was excused. 

Paul Berg – Berg Engineering – Presentation on Prorated Impact Fees (Tab 3):  Paul Berg, 
Berg Engineering, represented Wasatch Housing Authority. He said that impact fees were 
important to any city—that was the way new development paid its way. He indicated that 
typically impact fees were based on ERU’s (equivalent resident unit).  He discussed the Red 
Ledges homes versus a small apartment home. He said he was not asking to do away with impact 
fees but to re-look at them. He referred to the memo he sent out in the packet. He requested the 
Council change the way impact was assessed so that smaller homes paid less and larger homes 
paid more. He felt that made fees more fair but didn’t affect the overall budget. 

Councilman McDonald indicated Mumford was currently working on the City’s impact fee 
schedule and wanted to wait until he had brought back his recommendations before considering 
input from anyone else.  He continued that until Mumford brought back information and the 
Council found out if the City’s schedule was in line with State Code, he did not want to make 
any decisions. Councilman Mergist suggested if developers made an extra effort towards 
conservation, that should be considered when assessing fees.

3 of 8 cc01212010



Russ Watts said he agreed there needed to be impact fees. He said he worked on housing for 
seniors, etc., and wanted to make sure they were treated fairly.  He said they simply wanted the 
Council to review the fees and indicated staff had been positive about working with them.  Watts 
went over a chart he had brought in relation to impact fees which showed the differences in 
impact on apartments, luxury homes, and average homes.  He wanted the Council to consider the 
real impact based on the size of the home. He said he was a believer in impact fees and knew 
they were necessary. 

Mayor Phillips suggested the greater the impact the greater the fee. Anderson indicated Mumford 
was attending an engineers’ conference. He continued that impact for water was based on the 
size of the meter installed. He suggested the reality was there could be as many people in a small 
home as a luxury home. Berg said some cities had gone away from meter size--they wanted to 
put the equitable part back into ERU. Anderson said Mumford was looking at the scope of work 
to update the City’s impact fees. Chief Rhoades asked if the Council would be looking at the 
impact for law enforcement. Anderson said the Council had not expressed an interest in that but 
it could be looked at in budget meetings if they had the desire. 

Gary McDonald thanked the Council for their consideration. He said they had been working hard 
for several months towards a 23-unit senior housing project just north of Ranch Landing, and 
that John Brereton was helping them submit an application for tax credits. He suggested the 
impact fee numbers were crucial and if they were changed, it would help them with their rents 
and other costs.  

ACTION ITEMS

Ordinance 2010-01 – An Ordinance amending the Heber City Municipal Code – Chapter 
18.102 – Affordable Housing; and Amending Section 17.020-202 – Preliminary Plans 
(Continued from the November 5, 2009 and January 7, 2010 meetings) (Tab 4):
Mayor Phillips reviewed the changes as suggested by the Council. Discussion about the 
differences in buildable and sellable lots. Councilman McDonald asked if the Council had the 
option to choose the lots that would be designated for Affordable Housing. Kohler said staff now 
had experience with this issue and the City could look at the proposal and say yes or no on the 
lots developers wanted to turn over.  McDonald felt that language should be in the Code. Kohler 
said the Council had the choice without putting actual language in the Code—the City could 
refuse what the developer proposed.  He emphasized the City had the choice to say, no this 
would not work for us. 

Kohler discussed the differences in the current Code versus the proposed Ordinance.  He 
suggested the Council had more flexibility with the proposed Ordinance than the current Code.  
Discussion about the Housing Authority. Nan Trotter, a member of the audience who had worked 
for a title company, said that on the City level, someone had to make sure the documents were 
recorded.  Someone had to be the big brother. Anderson said the City did not take on the 
responsibility of recording development CCR’s. Mark Smedley suggested the reason the City 
didn’t want to be the big brother was because of the liability taken on and the amount of work to 
assure enforcement. The developers could hire their own private attorneys. He said staff should 



not feel like they had to be the end all. He said the City didn’t want to take on the tremendous 
responsibility and enforcement of this. He continued the City could take as much as the Council 
wanted, but they had to consider the responsibility, resources and money to do so—the City 
needed to be careful of what they took on. 

Councilman McDonald asked about penalties.  Kohler said it was already in the Code that the 
City could impose fines.  Anderson said he did not know if the City could reach from one 
development to another.  Kohler said penalties had to deal with current development and not a 
separate one in another location. He said approvals had to be tied to a property and not a 
particular developer. Anderson explained that development agreements were recorded at the 
County and any purchaser of a defunct development would be aware of any 
requirement/responsibility for that particular development based on the recorded document. 

Mayor Phillips asked how the proposed Ordinance would affect subdivisions already in place. 
Anderson said Red Ledges already had an agreement with the City and would not be affected by 
this new proposal.  

Gary McDonald said just in the last week they had found out there were conditions listed in the 
Mill Road CCR’s restricting rental which stopped the C.R.O.W.N Program. He said the Utah 
Housing Authority had withdrawn their application for C.R.O.W.N homes in the Mill Road 
Estates Subdivision.  Consequently, he had sent a recommendation that additional language be 
inserted in the Ordinance that if there was affordable housing in a development, the CCR 
restrictions didn’t apply.  Councilman Mergist asked if C.R.O.W.N. was the only game in town. 
McDonald said no. Councilman Horner suggested there were other options and did not know if 
C.R.O.W.N. was really the best option in Mill Road--he was neutral on that. However, he did 
think the CCR’S had to be met. Anderson suggested the Housing Authority needed to address 
these issues in their agreements with developers and not put the burden on the City. 

It was discussed that the indemnification for C.R.O.W.N. Homes was dead now because of the 
rental issue in the CCR’s of Ivory Homes Subdivision.  Again, it was stressed the Housing 
Authority needed to take care of their own issues and not put burdens on the City.

Discussion about 18.102.020 5E. The Council was in favor of striking 5E. Kohler agreed with 
Councilman Mergist that this should not be addressed under Affordable Housing but rather in 
master plans and through a different approach other than affordable housing. Kohler talked about 
it being better for affordable housing to be incorporated closer to the core of town where it would 
be less expensive as far as moving about and having convenience to shopping, jobs, transit, etc. 
Discussion about having the Housing Authority’s signatures on the mylar.  Kohler said most 
jurisdictions had the planning director sign the mylar; however, Heber City did not require that. 
He suggested it was the planning director’s responsibility to make sure the affordable housing 
issues were taken care of and suggested the planning director should sign. Discussion that 
Mumford made sure everything was satisfied before he signed the mylar based on a checklist of 
requirements to be completed. Anderson said it was an exhaustive list. The Council seemed to be 
comfortable with that process.  

5 of 8 cc01212010



Councilman Horner moved to strike 18.102.020 E5 of the proposed Ordinance. Councilman 
McDonald made the second. Voting AYE: Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and 
Benny Mergist. Councilman Straddeck was excused.

Discussion about the one (1) year to record and the one (1) year extension at which point the 
developer would have to start over. 

Councilman McDonald moved to adopt Ordinance 2010-01 as currently written (E5 had been 
stricken in the previous motion) Councilman Mergist made the second.  No further discussion. 
Voting AYE: Nile Horner, Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. Councilman 
Straddeck was excused. 

Ordinance 2010-02 – An Ordinance Amending Section 18.103-090 of the Heber City 
Municipal Code – Electronic Message Centers, Changeable Copy Areas and Reader Boards 
(Tab 5):  Councilman Horner would like some in-depth study on this and then adopt an 
ordinance based on the study.

Kohler explained the City had been approached by a couple of businesses to amend the Code in 
relation to electronic reader boards. He reviewed the grandfathered signs verses the signs under 
the most current Sign Ordinance. He said this proposed Ordinance revised the 25 percent to a 
square footage. It was indicated the Planning Commission had recommended against Electronic 
Reader Boards. He said, too that CAMS felt Heber City was more a Park City-type town and did 
not feel Electronic Reader Boards were conducive to the environment. Kohler explained the 
language in the proposed Ordinance made them more adaptable. However, CAMS and other 
boards felt that the entire Sign Code needed to be revisited. Councilman Mergist said he had an 
idea of what the public wanted and, “I think I know what I want”. Councilman Horner said he 
was not necessarily in agreement with CAMS. Kohler said some businesses had met a few times 
and CAMS had also met and discussed this issue a few times.  Councilman McDonald suggested 
a sign committee be put together and work under the direction of the Planning Commission.  

Councilman Horner said he didn’t want to adopt this just so the City would not be holding up 
Walgreens. He suggested that if the City needed to do something urgently for Walgreens, they 
should try for a variance or amendment.  He felt that if this Ordinance was adopted and then in 
six months it was found something different needed to be put in place, Walgreens might like the 
newest version of the Code better.

Councilman Mergist asked the Planning Commission members if this proposal was better than 
what was already in place. Commissioner Thurber thought that yes, it was. 

Councilman Mergist moved to put a six-month moratorium on new or existing reader boards and 
not approve Ordinance 2010-02 at this time and form a committee to study the issue. 
Councilman Patterson made the second. 

Mayor Phillips asked for discussion. Councilman Mergist said he wanted to look at the whole 
sign issue and said he had a problem with reader boards. 



Councilman Mergist withdrew his motion. Councilman Patterson withdrew his second.

Councilman Horner moved to continue this issue until a committee could be put together to 
determine the sign needs of Heber City, that public hearings be held  at the Planning Commission 
level as per Code, and the Planning Commission seek volunteers for the committee with 
approval of the Council.  Councilman McDonald made the second.   

Mayor Phillips asked for discussion. Councilman Mergist said he did not want the Planning 
Commission to stack the committee with one-sided opinions.  

Voting AYE:  Councilmembers Nile Horner, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. Voting NAY: 
Robert Patterson. Councilman Straddeck was excused.  

Appointment to the Board of Appeals and Airport Advisory Board: Mayor Phillips 
recommended the following: Paul Royall III, Board of Adjustment and Dave Hansen, Airport 
Advisory Board.

Councilman Patterson moved to approve the names of Paul Royall III and Dave Hansen to serve 
on the Board of Appeals and Airport Advisory Board respectively as presented by Mayor 
Phillips.  Councilman McDonald made the second. No discussion. Voting AYE: Nile Horner, 
Robert Patterson, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. Councilman Straddeck was excused.

Discussion/Action – Issuance/Stoppage of Building Permits – Ivory Homes Mill Road 
Estates Subdivision:  Gary McDonald said the Housing Authority was now aware the 
C.R.O.W.N. Project could not be allowed in Mill Road Estates. 

Chris Gamvroulas expressed appreciation to the Council for placing this issue on the agenda and 
indicated that they had agreed to go to the County Council. He said they were going forward in 
good faith and had tried to be a good business partner in the City. What he wanted to say to the 
Council was that he felt the motion during the January 4th meeting was untimely since Ivory 
Homes did not have the opportunity to be heard and he did not feel it was fair. Nevertheless, they 
wanted to move forward and asked the Council to go with them to Wasatch County to talk about 
abating the taxes—give them a chance to work this out with the County and the Housing 
Authority. He asked that the Council give Ivory the consideration he felt they had earned.  He 
said: “I respectively request the Council reconsider the motion made on January 4, 2010, in the 
sense of fair play.” Councilman Horner suggested fair play was Ivory turning lots over that were 
unencumbered and asked what Ivory would do if the County Council didn’t abate the taxes. 
Gamvroulas said they also had an offer in with the Housing Authority to buy the lots back and 
would pay the taxes. 

Gamvroulas said they would like to have the opportunity to have the taxes abated. He said, 
though, if Ivory took the lots back, they would pay the taxes and build the homes--if they were 
given the opportunity to build the homes, they would pay the taxes. He said they wanted to be 
treated fairly. 

7 of 8 cc01212010



Gamvroulas continued that Ivory Homes had made an offer to the County Housing Authority on 
January 11 and they were supposed to be on the Housing Authority Agenda again on Monday; 
however, he had just found out tonight they had been pulled off that agenda. 

At this point, the Council went into Closed Session.

At 9:55 p.m. The Council returned to Open Session. Councilman McDonald moved that in good 
faith, because Ivory said they would pay the taxes, the City would give Ivory Homes until March 
1, 2010, to have the taxes abated or paid. If not paid by March 1, 2010, the City might take 
further action about future building permits.  Councilman Mergist made the second. Voting AYE: 
Councilmembers Nile Horner, Robert McDonald, Alan McDonald and Benny Mergist. 
Councilman Straddeck was excused.

Mayor Phillips told Gamvroulas it appeared he had two additional Councilmen that would go 
with Ivory Homes to the County Council meeting when they requested the taxes be abated. 

Councilman Horner indicated he would contact Gary McDonald tomorrow to see how firm the 
agenda was for Monday’s Affordable Housing Meeting.  He said he knew there were people that 
had taken time off and wanted to attend that meeting. Consequently, he would try and get this 
particular issue back on the agenda. Gamvroulas thanked the Council and expressed his 
appreciation to them for their effort to work with Ivory Homes.

CITY COUNCIL BOARD ASSIGNMENT REPORTS

No Reports were given.

As there was no further business, the Regular Meeting of the Heber City Council held on January 
21, 2010, adjourned at 10:20 p.m.

                                                                 
Paulette Thurber, City Recorder


